Docusign Envelope ID: A279B40E-2694-4FC9-A97B-3D709A884E5C

MINUTES OF MEETING
WESTSIDE HAINES CITY
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Westside Haines City Community
Development District was held Wednesday, February 26, 2025, at 9:30 a.m. at the Holiday Inn —
Winter Haven, 200 Cypress Gardens Blvd., Winter Haven, Florida.

Present and constituting a quorum:

Rennie Heath Chairman

Lauren Schwenk via Zoom Vice Chairman
Bobbie Henley Assistant Secretary
Lindsey Roden Assistant Secretary

Also present were:

Jill Burns District Manager, GMS
Savannah Hancock District Counsel, Kilinski Van Wyk
Joel Blanco Field Manager, GMS

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call

Ms. Burns called the meeting to order at 9:40 a.m. and called the roll. Three Board members

were in attendance constituting a quorum. Ms. Schwenk joined via Zoom.

SECOND ORDER OF BUSNESS Public Comment Period
Ms. Burns noted there was one member of the public present. There being no comments,

the next item followed.

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of Minutes of the November 20,
2024 Board of Supervisors Meeting
Ms. Burns presented the minutes from the November 20, 2024, Board of Supervisors

meeting. She asked if there were any questions, comments, or changes. The Board had no changes

to the minutes.

On MOTION by Mr. Heath, seconded by Ms. Henley, with all in
favor, the Minutes of the November 20, 2024 Board of Supervisors
Meeting, was approved.




Docusign Envelope ID: A279B40E-2694-4FC9-A97B-3D709A884E5C

February 26, 2025 Westside Haines City CDD
FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Ratification of Conveyance Documents for
Cascades Phase 2
A. Limited Liability Company Affidavit for Deed (Tracts B & C — GLK Real Estate,
LLC)

B. Owner’s Affidavit (Tracts B & C — GLK Real Estates, LL.C)

Special Warranty Deed (Tracts B & C — Lennar & GLK Real Estates, LL.C)

D. Quit-Claim Deed (Cascades Phase 2 ROW and Tract A — Lennar & GLK Real
Estates, LLC)
Ms. Burns stated all of the documents were in the agenda and have been executed. She

0

asked for ratification of all the conveyance documents from the Board.

On MOTION by Mr. Heath, seconded by Ms. Roden, with all in
favor, the Conveyance Documents for Cascades Phase 2, were

ratified.
FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 2025 Data Sharing and Usage Agreement
with Polk County Property Appraiser
SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 2025 Contract Agreement with Polk

County Property Appraiser
Ms. Burns asked for any question on the 2025 Data Sharing and Usage Agreement and the

2025 Contract Agreement with the Polk County Appraiser. She noted that these were standard

annual contracts that the Board approves every year.

On MOTION by Ms. Henley, seconded by Mr. Heath, with all in
favor, the 2025 Data Sharing and Usage Agreement with the Polk
County Property Appraiser and the 2025 Contract Agreement with
the Polk County Property Appraiser, was approved.

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Resolution 2025-04
Adopting Policies for Use of the Fitness
Center

Ms. Burns stated they have already approved amenity policies, however they noticed they
were missing policies for the gym. She added they included a standard set of gym policies attached
that they would like to use for the facilities. She noted in Cascades there is access to the pool from

the gym, however the gym is open later and they cannot allow people to access the pool through



Docusign Envelope ID: A279B40E-2694-4FC9-A97B-3D709A884E5C
February 26, 2025 Westside Haines City CDD
the gym after pool hours. She recommended for the time being setting the gym hours the same as

the pool, until they are able to install a secondary gate. The Board decided to have the gym open
from 6:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m.

On MOTION by Mr. Heath, seconded by Ms. Henley, with all in
favor, Resolution 2025-04 Adopting Policies for Use of the Fitness
Center, was approved.

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Proposals from Current
Demands for Cascades Phase Amenity
Center
A. Proposal for Camera Installation at Amenity
B. Proposal for Remote Monitoring Service for Cameras
Ms. Burns stated the site has already been prewired for the installation of cameras, but the

prices were off. She added there is an option for the cameras to be monitored. She stated this will

be for $214 per month, for an annual amount of $2,568. She noted they have budgeted $35k.

On MOTION by Mr. Heath, seconded by Ms. Henley, with all in
favor, the Proposal for Remote Monitoring Service for Cameras, was
approved.

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports
A. Attorney
Ms. Hancock had nothing to report. She noted ethics training has started and they need to

complete by the end of the year.

B. Engineer
Mr. Malave had nothing to report.

C. Field Manager’s Report
Mr. Blanco presented the Field Managers Report on page 45 of the agenda package. He

stated the field staff has been monitoring the Palms at Massee and Waterfall Drive, as they appear
to have been declining. He added a vendor confirmed that five palms were dying and those have

been removed. He noted the vendor is in the process of identifying if the disease that caused them



Docusign Envelope ID: A279B40E-2694-4FC9-A97B-3D709A884E5C

February 26, 2025 Westside Haines City CDD

to die is in the soil or airborne. He stated they were advised not to replace the trees until this issue
is figured out.

Mr. Blanco stated gopher mounts were flattened, gopher scram was installed at the Massee
Road entrances and the entrances were dressed in new mulch. He noted three Bismark Palms have
been installed at Phase 4 and there is a proposal to add quarterly injections to the existing
agreement. He wanted to make the Board aware of the patchy areas in the grass on Cumberland
Ave., stating the vendor will seed at the beginning of the rain season. He added the landscaping
has been satisfactory.

Mr. Blanco stated the pond landscaping has also been satisfactory. He noted that
maintenance staff has removed trash in several ponds throughout the District and the wet ponds
have been treated for algae. He added the dry ponds were identified with excessive vegetation and
the maintenance staff has been scheduled to remove the vegetation before the rainy season begins.

Mr. Blanco stated several maintenance items have been completed, the monuments in
Brentwood have been pressure washed and the cement stairs have been removed. He noted staff
identified five areas that are in need of lighting. He added he is looking to set up the “No Parking”

signs. He noted the amenity areas are still in progress and will be ready to open soon.

i. Cascades Phase Proposals
a) Proposal for Quarterly Palm Injections for Entrance Bismark’s (Cascades
— Phase 3)

Mr. Blanco stated this proposal is from Prince & Sons for two Bismarcks to be injected

quarterly for $600.

On MOTION by Mr. Heath seconded by Ms. Roden, with all in favor,
the Proposal for Quarterly Palm Injections for Entrance Bismarcks
(Cascades — Phase 3), was approved.

b) Proposal from Resort Pool Services for Pool Maintenance Services (2
Service Options)
Mr. Blanco stated there are two options for pool maintenance services at Cascades. He

stated one is for 3 times a week including chemicals for $3,000 a month and one for 3 times a week

for winter service and 6 times from Memorial to Labor Day for $3,500 a month.



Docusign Envelope ID: A279B40E-2694-4FC9-A97B-3D709A884E5C

February 26, 2025 Westside Haines City CDD

On MOTION by Mr. Heath seconded by Ms. Roden, with all in favor,
the Proposal from Resort Pool Services for Pool Maintenance
Services for 3 times a week for winter service and 6 times from
Memorial to Labor Day for $3,500 a month, was approved.

¢) Landscaping Proposal to Service Phase 3
Mr. Blanco stated the pond is Phase 3 is ready to be mowed. He added to landscape phase

3, it would be a total of $64,896 a year.

On MOTION by Mr. Heath seconded by Ms. Henley, with all in
favor, the Landscaping Proposal to Service Phase 3, was approved.

d) Landscaping Proposal to Service Amenity Center
Mr. Blanco this is to add the amenity center to the agreement for $11,358. Ms. Burns stated

this will be in budget for this year, but they need to rebid the entire project in the near future.

On MOTION by Mr. Heath seconded by Ms. Roden, with all in favor,
the Landscaping Proposal to Service Amenity Center, was approved.

e) Proposal from Massey for Pest Control Services at Amenity
Mr. Blanco presented the proposal for Pest control at cascades for $1,700 a year. He noted

the visits are monthly and the first month will be $417.30. Mr. Heath stated this is not correct
because they included sales tax. Ms. Burns stated they will table this proposal until the numbers

are fixed.

f) Proposal from CSS for Janitorial Maintenance Services
Mr. Blanco presented the proposal from CSS for Janitorial Maintenance Services. He stated

there were two options, one for 3 times a week for $1,450 a month or one. For 4 days a week for
$1,890 a month. Ms. Burns suggested to have the cleaning more often because they have a gym.

The Board decided the janitorial services should be performed every 4 days.

On MOTION by Mr. Heath seconded by Ms. Henley, with all in
favor, the Proposal from CSS for Janitorial Maintenance Services,
was approved.




Docusign Envelope ID: A279B40E-2694-4FC9-A97B-3D709A884E5C

February 26, 2025 Westside Haines City CDD

ii. Brentwood Phase Proposals
a) Proposal from Resort Pool Services for Pool Maintenance Services
Mr. Blanco presented the proposal from Resort Pool Services for $1,800 a month, which

includes servicing the pool 3 times a week with chemicals.

On MOTION by Mr. Heath seconded by Ms. Henley, with all in
favor, the Proposal from Resort Pool Services for Pool Maintenance
Services, was approved.

b) Proposal for Aquatic Maintenance Services for 2 Dry Ponds
Mr. Blanco stated this is to add 2 dry ponds to the aquatic maintenance service for a total

of $1500 a year or $125 a month. Mr. Heath asked if they could see a discing proposal. The Board
decided to table this item for the time being.

¢) Proposal from Massey for Pest Control Services at Amenity
The Board decided to table this item until the numbers are correct.

d) Proposal from CSS for Janitorial Maintenance Services
Mr. Blanco presented the proposals from CSS for Janitorial Maintenance Services for 3

days a week at $1,150, 4 times a week for $1,450, or 7 days a week for $2,390 a month. The Board

decided the janitorial services should be performed every 4 days.

On MOTION by Mr. Heath seconded by Ms. Roden, with all in favor,
the Proposal from CSS for Janitorial Maintenance Services, was
approved.

iii. Consideration of Proposal for Mailbox Lighting at Phase 1A and Phase 2
Mailbox Area
Mr. Blanco presented the Proposal for Mailbox lighting at Phases 1A and 2 for $3,042.63.

On MOTION by Mr. Heath seconded by Ms. Roden, with all in favor,
the Proposal for Mailbox Lighting at Phase 1A and Phase 2 Mailbox
Area, was approved.




Docusign Envelope ID: A279B40E-2694-4FC9-A97B-3D709A884E5C

February 26, 2025 Westside Haines City CDD

iv. Consideration of Proposal for “No Street Parking Allowed” Signs (fo be
provided under separate cover)
Mr. Blanco stated he is still working with the county to see where these can be installed.

D. District Manager’s Report
i. Approval of Check Register
Ms. Burns presented the check register. She asked for any questions; otherwise, she is

looking for a motion to approve.

On MOTION by Mr. Heath, seconded by Ms. Roden, with all in
favor, the Check Register, was approved.

ii. Balance Sheet & Income Statement
Ms. Burns stated that financial statements were included in the agenda package for review.

She asked if anyone had any questions.

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Other Business
Mr. Heath asked what allows the CDD to take over the development once it is completed.

Ms. Burns stated they will take over once the site is fully complete and they have looked over the
property.
ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisors Requests and Audience

Comments
There being no comments, the next item followed.

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment

Ms. Burns asked for a motion to adjourn.

On MOTION by Ms. Roden, seconded by Mr. Heath, the meeting
was adjourned.

Signed by:

, Kot Beatle
\Dlu’ bWV\’S 8215FA2B8FB744A...

Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairman/Vice Chairman




